VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD ENFORCEMENT ACTION
CONSENT ORDER
ISSUED TO
FAIRFAX COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD
AND
SOUTHWEST RECREATIONAL INDUSTRIES, INC.

SECTION A: Purpose

ThisisaConsent Specia Order issued under the authority of Va. Code (“Code’) " 10.1-1182
et seq. and " " 10.1-1402, 10.1-1405, and 10.1-1455 between the Virginia Waste Management Board,
the Fairfax County School Board and Southwest Recreationd Industries, Inc. for the purpose of resolving
certain dleged violations of the Virginia Hazardous Waste Management Act and the Virginia Hazardous
Waste Management Regulations.

SECTION B: Definitions;

Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the following words and terms have the meaning
assigned to them below:

1 “VHWMR” and “Regulaions’ mean the Virginia Hazardous Waste Management
Regulations set forth at 9 VAC 20-60-12 et seq. The Regulations at 9 VAC 20-60-124,
260-266, -268, -270, -273 and —279 adopt by reference certain provisions of Title 40 of
the Code of Federal Regulations (*CFR”). Citations made herein will be to the revant
section of the CFR which are incorporated by reference into the Regulations.
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“Board’” meansthe Virginia Waste Management Board, a permanent collegid body of the
Commonwealth of Virginiaand described in Code * * 10.1-1401 and 10.1-1184.

“Depatment” or “DEQ" means the Department of Environmenta Quadlity, an agency of the
Commonwedth of Virginia as described in Code * 10.1-1183.

“Director” means the Director of the Department of Environmenta Quality.
“Order” means this document, aso known as a Consent Order.

“School Board” means Fairfax County School Board.

“Floor-Tec” means USA Foor-Tec, Inc.

“NVRO” meansthe Northern Virginia Regiond Office of DEQ), located in Woodbridge,
Virginia

“ Southwest” means Southwest Recreationa Industries, Inc.

SECTION C: Finding of Facts and Conclusions of L aw

1.

In April 2000, the School Board entered into a contract with Southwest to replace the gym
floor & Robinson Secondary School (Robinson). Shortly before entering into the contract,
the School Board learned through testing that the flooring materid contained mercury in
excess of the regulatory limit of 0.2 mg/L.

Based on the test results of the flooring materid, the School Board developed an
addendum, dated March 14, 2000, to the initid project noting that the flooring materia
should be disposed as a hazardous waste and requiring certified proof of disposal.
Southwest acknowledged the addendum on March 15, 2000, and the requirements
became a part of Southwest’s contractua obligations to the School Board. The origind
contract terms and addendum together are referred to as the “ Prime Contract”.

On June 13, 2000, Southwest entered into a subcontract agreement with Hoor-Tec for the
gym floor replacement project. The subcontract agreement sated that the flooring materid
had been tested and indicated “a higher than normd level of mercury”. Hoor-Tec stated
that they questioned whether the statement “a higher than normal level of mercury” meant
that the flooring was classified as hazardous. Foor-Tec sated that they were told by
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Southwest that it was not hazardous and there were

no specid requirements.  Southwest stated that Floor-Tec was aware that the flooring
materid contained devated levels of mercury and that the subcontract, which incorporated
the Prime Contract, included the addendum requiring the disposd of the flooring materia
as hazardous waste.

Floor-Tec removed the gym floor and disposed of the waste flooring materid on July 14,
17, and 19, 2000.

On October 15, 2001, DEQ received aletter dated October 12, 2001, from an attorney
for the School Board. The letter stated that after numerous atempts to obtain information
regarding the proper digposd of the flooring materia, no information was provided that
would identify the gppropriate digposa of the waste flooring materid. Asaresult of the
lack of information, the School Board notified DEQ of the Situation.

Based on the information provided to DEQ on October 15, 2001, DEQ issued the School
Board anctice of violation on December 19, 2001, dleging falure to comply with 40 CFR
Part 262, Standards Applicable to Generators of Hazardous Waste and 40 CFR Part 268,
Land Disposd Redtrictions, asincorporated into the VHWMR.

Upon discussons with the attorney for the School Board, DEQ faxed alist of questionsto
the attorney in an attempt to ascertain additiond information regarding the disoosd of the
waste flooring materid. On February 22, 2002, DEQ received a response from the
attorney dating that the School Board had no additiona informeation to provide. In
addition, the attorney advised DEQ that they forwarded a copy of the questions to the
attorney for Southwest.

On February 25, 2002, through legd counsdl, Southwest advised DEQ that Southwest was
unable to provide a certification of hazardous waste disposal to the School Board despite
repeated attempts by Southwest to obtain the information from Foor-Tec. Nonetheless,
based on Southwest’ s contractua obligations to the School Board, Southwest has agreed
to accept respongbility for resolving the dleged noncompliance on behdf of the School
Board.

On March 12, 2002, DEQ sent a Request for Information letter to Floor-Tec seeking
information concerning the management, treatment, storage, trangportation, and disposal
of the waste flooring materid.
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12.

13.

14.

On April 4, 2002, DEQ received a response from FHoor-Tec stating that a no time prior
to or during the remova and disposal project, had they any knowledge that the flooring
material was to be treated as hazardous materidl. Floor-Tec states that it was

not until April 2001 that Hoor-Tec recaeived information that the flooring materia was
hazardous waste, gpproximately nine months after the disposdl.

Southwest maintains that Floor-Tec was aware of the elevated levels of mercury in the
flooring materia and, upon entering into the subcontract incorporating the Prime Contract,
Floor-Tec was obligated to manage the waste flooring materia as hazardous waste.
Southwest dso denies any dlegations or suggestions by Hoor-Tec in its satementsto DEQ
that Southwest misrepresented in any way the requirements for management of the flooring
meterid.

Based on the information provided to DEQ by dl parties, DEQ issued this Consent Order
to the School Board and Southwest.

Appendix A of this Order requires the School Board to develop, submit for review, and
implement upon approva, an interna review procedure designed to ensure that its
contractors gppropriately manage the County’ s hazardous waste.

On July 8, 2002, the School Board submitted to DEQ for review and gpprova,, an internd
review procedure designed to ensure that its contractors gppropriately manage the
County’ s hazardous waste.

SECTION D: Agreement and Order

Accordingly the Board, by virtue of the authority of Code ** 10.1-1182 et seg. and " 10.1-
1402, 10.1-1405, and 10.1-1455, orders the School Board, and the School Board agrees to comply with
the terms of Appendix A of thisOrder. In addition, the Board orders the School Board and Southwes,
and the School Board and Southwest voluntarily agree to pay acivil charge of $8,000.00 within 30 days
of the effective date of this Order in settlement of the aleged violations cited in this Order. Payment shdl
be made by check payable to “ Treasurer of Virginia® and sent to:

Receipts Control

Department of Environmental Quality
Post Office Box 10150

Richmond, VA 23240
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Either on atransmitta letter or as a notation on the check, the School Board and Southwest shall
indicate that this payment is submitted pursuant to this Order and shdl include the Federd Identification
Numbers for Fairfax County School Board and Southwest.

SECTION E: Administr ative Provisons

1 The Board may modify, rewrite, or amend the Order with the consent of the School Board
and Southwest, for good cause shown by the School Board and Southwest, or on itsown
motion after notice and opportunity to be heard.

2. This Order only addresses and resolves those dleged violations specificdly identified
herein, including those matters addressed in the Notice of Violation issued to the School
Board by DEQ on December 19, 2001. This Order shal not preclude the Board or the
Director from taking any action authorized by law, including but not limited to: (1) taking
any action authorized by law regarding any additiond, subsequent, or subsequently
discovered violations, (2) seeking subsequent remediation of the facility as may be
authorized by law; or (3) taking subsequent action to enforce the Order. This Order shal
not preclude appropriate enforcement actions by other federal, Sate, or locd regulatory
authorities for matters not addressed herein or any defense to such actions by the School
Board or Southwest.

3. By entering into and for purposes of this Order and for subsequent actions with respect to
this Order, the School Board and Southwest do not contest the jurisdictiond dlegations
contained herein, but they do not admit to them, the factud findings, and concdlusons of law
contained herein. Southwest enters into this Consent Order soldly as the result of and to
fulfill certain of its contractud obligations to the School Board and to settle the dlegations
contained herein with the Board and DEQ.

4, The School Board and Southwest consent to venue in the Circuit Court of the City of
Richmond for any civil action taken to enforce the terms of this Order.

5. The School Board and Southwest declare they have received fair and due process under
the Adminigtrative Process Act, Code *" 9-6.14:11 et seq., and the Virginia Waste
Management Act, Code " " 10.1-1400 et seq., and waive theright to any hearing or other
adminigtrative proceeding authorized or required by law or regulaion, and to any judicid
review of any issue of fact or law contained herein. Nothing herein shdl be construed as
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awaver of the right to any adminigtrative proceeding for, or to judicid review of, any
action taken by the Board or the Director to enforce this Order or any matter not resolved
by this Order.

Failure by the School Board and Southwest to comply with any of the terms of this Order
shdl condtitute aviolation of an order of the Board. Nothing herein shal waivetheinitiation
of gppropriate enforcement actions or the issuance of additiona orders as appropriate by
the Board or the Director as aresult of such violation(s).

Nothing herein shdl affect gppropriate enforcement actions by any other federd, Sate, or
loca regulatory authority or any defenses the School Board or Southwest may have to such
action.

If any provision of this Order isfound to be unenforcegble for any reason, the remainder
of the Order shdl remain in full force and effect.

The School Board and Southwest shall each be respongble for its respective failure to
comply with any of the terms and conditions of this Order unless compliance is made
impossible by earthquake, flood, other acts of God, war, strike, or such other occurrence.
The School Board and Southwest shdl each show that such circumstances were beyond
its respective control and not due to a lack of good faith or diligence on its pat. The
School Board and Southwest shall each notify the DEQ

Regiond Director in writing when circumstances are anticipated to occur, are occurring,
or have occurred that may delay its compliance or cause noncompliance with any
requirement of the Order. Such notice shall et forth:

a the reasons for the delay or noncompliance;
b. the projected duration of any such delay or noncompliance;

C. the measures taken and to be taken to prevent or minimize such dday or
noncompliance; and

d. the timetable by which such measures will be implemented and, if gpplicable, the
date full compliance will be achieved.

Falure to s0 notify the Regiond Director within 72 hours of learning of any condition
above, which a party intends to assert will result in the impaossibility of compliance, shdll
condtitute awaiver by that party of any clam to inability to comply with arequirement of
this Order.
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9. This Order is binding on the parties hereto, their successors in interest, designees and
assigns, jointly and severdly.

10.  ThisOrder shal become effective upon execution by both the Director or his designee, the
School Board, and Southwest. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the School Board and
Southwest agree to be bound by any compliance date which precedes the effective date
of this Order.

11. This Order shdl continue in effect until:

(& The School Board and Southwest petition the Director or his designee to terminate the
Order after dl of the requirements of the Order have been completed, as confirmed by
the Department, and the Director or his designee gpproves the termination of the
Order;

(b) The Director or Board terminates the Order in his or its sole discretion upon 30 days
written notice to the School Board and Southwest.

Termination of this Order, or any obligation imposed in this Order, shdl not operate to
relieve the School Board and Southwest from their respective obligations to comply with
any datute, regulation, permit condition, other order, certificate, certification, sandard, or
requirement otherwise gpplicable.

12. By their sgnatures below, the School Board and Southwest voluntarily agree to the
issuance of this Order.

And it is so ORDERED this day of , 2002.

Robert G. Burnley, Director
Department of Environmenta Quality

Fairfax County School Board voluntarily agrees to the issuance of this Order.
By:

Date:

Commonwedth of Virginia
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City/County of

The foregoing document was signed and acknowledged before me this day of

, 2002, by ,whois
(name)

of the Fairfax County School Board.

(title)

Notary Public

My commission expires:
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Southwest Recreational Industries, Inc. voluntarily agrees to the issuance of this Order.

By:

Date:

State of Texas
City/County of

The foregoing document was signed and acknowledged before me this day of

, 2002, by ,whois
(name)

of Southwest Recreational Industries, Inc.

(title)

Notary Public

My commission expires:




APPENDIX A
SCHEDULE OF COMPLIANCE

The School Board shall:

1.

By July 15, 2002, develop and submit for review and gpprova to DEQ, an internd
review procedure designed to ensure appropriate hazardous waste management
by contractors performing work for or on behaf of the School Board.

Within 30 days of receipt of any comments from DEQ, submit in writing, arevised
procedure addressng DEQ comments, until such time as the procedure is
approved by DEQ.

The School Board shdl implement the procedure following receipt of written
approva from DEQ.



